
 

Page 1 of 2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
February 5, 2020– 1:30 PM 

5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Approval of the January 8, 2020 Board Minutes 

 
3. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 

 
4. Board Member Announcements 

 
5. General Manager’s Report 

 
6. Consent 

a. Approval of Monthly Financial Reports 
b. Approval of Barbier Security Group Contact Amendment No. 1 
c. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Amendment No. 2 to 

Contract No. CV-BB-19-001 with Ghilotti Bros, Inc in the amount of $79,649 for 
the Enhanced Pedestrian Safety Improvements Project 
 

7. Approve a Resolution authorizing SMART to submit a Joint Application with the Santa 
Rosa Junior College and City of Santa Rosa for Affordable Housing Sustainable 
Communities (AHSC) Program funds to implement the SMART Operations Apprenticeship 
Training Program and expand SMART Eco Pass College Student Program 

 
8. Approve a Resolution Formally Requesting SMART’s Participation in Regional Clipper 

START Program to Provide 50% Discount to Low-Income Transit Users  
 
9. SMART Ridership Update Report 

Page 1 of 69 



 

Page 2 of 2 

10. Closed Session 
a.  Conference with Legal Counsel regarding whether to initiate litigation pursuant to
 California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(4): Number of cases: 1 
 
b. Conference with Legal Counsel regarding exposure to potential litigation pursuant 
 to California Government Code Section 54956.9(e)(3): Number of cases: 2 
 

11. Report Out of Closed Session 
 

12. Next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, February 19, 2020 – 1:30pm – 5401 Old 
Redwood Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA 94954 

 
13. Adjournment 
 
 
DISABLED ACCOMMODATION: If you have a disability that requires the agenda materials to be in an alternate format or that 
requires an interpreter or other person to assist you while attending this meeting, please contact SMART at least 72 hours prior 
to the meeting to ensure arrangements for accommodation. Please contact the Clerk of the Board at (707) 794-3072 or dial CRS 
711 for more information.  
 
DOCUMENTS: Documents distributed by SMART for its monthly Board meeting or committee meetings, and which are not 
otherwise privileged, may be inspected at SMART’s office located at 5401 Old Redwood Highway, Suite 200, Petaluma, CA 94954 
during regular business hours. Documents may also be viewed on SMART’s website at: www.sonomamarintrain.org. Materials 
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to SMART after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection 
at the SMART Office. For information about accessing SMART meetings by public transit, use the trip planner at www.511.org. 

 

Page 2 of 69 

http://www.511.org/


Page 1 of 14 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES  
January 8, 2020- 1:30 PM  

5401 Old Redwood Highway, 1st Floor 
Petaluma, CA 94954 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
Chair Phillips called the meeting to order at 1:30pm. Directors Arnold, Connolly, Fudge, 
Garbarino, Hillmer, Lucan, Pahre and Rabbitt were present. Directors Rogers and Zane 
absent; Director Naujokas arrived later.  
 

2. Election of Chairperson 
 

Chair Phillips said he has been pleased to serve as Chair for the SMART Board last year.  
SMART had a lot of accomplishments including the opening of Larkspur and Downtown 
Novato Stations. The ridership has steadily increased and he is proud of the service that 
SMART is providing to the community. 
 
Chair Phillips proceeded to nominate Director Lucan for Chair for 2020. 
 
MOTION: Chair Phillips moved the nomination for Director Lucan to become Chair. 
Director Fudge second. The motion carried 9-0 (Directors Rogers and Zane absent; 
Director Naujokas arrived later). 

 
3. Approval of the December 4, 2019 Board Minutes  
 

MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved approval of the December 4, 2019 Board Minutes as 
presented. Director Lucan second. The motion carried 9-0 (Directors Rogers and Zane 
absent; Director Naujokas arrived later). 
 

4. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
  

Richard Brand stated that being able to connect to the Larkspur Ferry is fabulous. On 
Saturday, January 4th, he was able to take the train from the Airport Station to Larkspur 
and arrive at the San Francisco Farmers Market. The train and ferry were full and the ferry 

Page 3 of 69 



Page 2 of 14 

was 25 minutes late. He suggested that the Airport Station handicap parking be re-
evaluated to be closer to station. 
 
Duane Bellinger stated that at the last meeting he mentioned connecting the community 
along the rail. Also, the Argus Courier said that SMART opposes a transit-oriented 
community. He said that he has shared voters’ numbers and how are they supposed to 
vote for the sales tax when SMART is actively opposing their interest.  

 
Linda Winter voiced her concerns regarding SMART’s fee structure. She is a strong 
supporter of public transit and tax dollars.  The monthly pass is very expensive especially 
for low income families. 
 
Rich Harkness urged the Board not to place the tax extension on the March 2020 ballot.  
He stated that SMART has not published the information that voters need to make an 
intelligent decision.  The voters need to have greenhouse gas reduction impact on 
congestion and ridership data. He has conducted research and concluded that SMART is 
unlikely saving any greenhouse gas. 
 
Christopher Neary (proxy for Allen Hemphill) congratulated the Board and SMART staff 
for the opening of Larkspur Station.  He voiced his concerns regarding an article in the 
Marin Independent Journal that the San Rafael Mayor stated that SMART does not 
support freight. He suggested a clarification be made to that reference. The perspective 
of the Healdsburg community is that SMART is blocking the Resort project north of 
Healdsburg.  Chair Phillips responded that he is available to discuss the comment made 
in the Independent Journal.  
 
Steve Bosshard stated that it took SMART two times for Marin and Sonoma County voters 
to pass the Measure. He will be addressing the ridership data issue later. He said that 
SMART’s General Manager does not have any train experience, however the former 
Operations Manager did and he left SMART because the General Manager did not 
acknowledge his experience and input. SMART has not accomplished the voter’s goals 
and since 2012 on the TransparentCalifornia.com website salaries have increased 
tremendously for the following positions: The General Manager $310k to $394k; the Chief 
Financial Officer $176k to $292; Chief Engineer $166k to $262k; the Chief of Police with 
no force is $236k and the Operations Manager $241k. He said that the Chief of Police who 
was appointed to Operations Manager and believes she does not have any experience 
working on railroads.  
 
Hillary Fox stated that Board members should have received an email with a proposed 
train schedule that can help Credo High School and Sonoma Academy students get to and 
from school earlier.  

 
David Gravitch stated he is the founder of San Francisco Bay Railroad. He worked closely 
with Caltrain coordinating train service in the Peninsula. He offered his 30 years of 
experience and expertise of railroading.  

Page 4 of 69 



Page 3 of 14 

Mike Pechner stated that the Diesel Multiple Units (DMU’s) are tier 4, which is the highest 
tier with the Federal Railroad Administration and far more efficient than busses. He 
suggested the SMART consider an advertisement campaign especially with the 
Wednesday Giant Baseball games in coordination with the ferry and train.  
 
Willard Richards stated that SMART is being criticized heavily for not releasing its 
greenhouse gas emissions.  However, in 2008 SMART published a White Paper #6 which 
includes statistics prior to SMART receiving the vehicles and start of passenger service.  
He would be happy to assist staff in updating the statistics.  
 
Chair Phillips responded and stated that SMART staff will provide and update on 
greenhouse gas emissions at the next Board meeting.  

 
5.  Board Members Announcements 

 
Director Rabbitt thanked Chair Phillips for his leadership on the SMART Board last year. 
He welcomed Director Lucan for assuming Chair role this year. 
 
Director Fudge stated that construction began on the Windsor Extension project. Her 
email and text messages are overflowing with comments. The majority of the comments 
are positive with excitement that the train is coming the Windsor.  Chair Philips stated 
that when testing begins, he will be sending his sympathies. Director Fudge also asked if 
the General Manager can provide an update on what SMART is experiencing with vehicles 
getting stuck on tracks and running over barriers, etc.  
 
Director Connolly stated that the issue that is arising in San Rafael is the east/west traffic 
through Central San Rafael. He understands that there is coordination with the City of San 
Rafael for its traffic lights timing and an overall assessment of the area. He suggested 
receiving an in-depth update of the area in the future. 
 

6. General Manager’s Report 
 
General Manager Mansourian wished everyone a Happy and Prosperous New Year 2020. 
He announced that today’s meeting replaces the meeting of January 15th, the next regular 
Board meeting is February 5, 2020. 
 
He reported since opening day in August 2017 through December 2019, SMART has 
carried 1,686,000 passengers, 164,000 bicycles, and over $6,300 wheelchairs. 
 
Chair Phillips stated that General Manager Mansourian provides ridership data at every 
SMART Board meeting and for some to imply or state that SMART Board members don’t 
receive that information is wrong and disconcerting. 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 69 



Page 4 of 14 

Director Garbarino thanked General Manager Mansourian and SMART’s staff for 
orchestrating the opening from San Rafael to Larkspur and Downtown Novato station.  
She wishes that everyone will be attending the Windsor Extension opening   
 

7. Consent 
a. Approval of Monthly Financial Reports 
b. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Amendment No. 1 with Van 

Scoyoc Associates 
c. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Amendment No. 8 with Hanson 

Bridgett  

d. Approve a Resolution Authorizing for the General Manager to execute a Property 
Exchange Agreement Between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District and the 
City of San Rafael and a Quitclaim Deed of SMART property to the City of San Rafael 
and to accept property from the City of San Rafael for the Larkspur Extension Project  

 
Chair Phillips asked for Board and public comments on the proposed Consent Agenda. 
 
MOTION: Director Lucan moved approval of the Consent Agenda as presented. Director 
Fudge second. The motion carried 9-0 (Directors Rogers and Zane absent; Director 
Naujokas arrived later). 
 

8. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Amendment No. 6 with GBS Group 
in the amount of $483,587 for performance of maintenance and monitoring services for 
Internet Connectivity for the SMART Trains 
 
Operations Manager, Jennifer McGill, stated that the item before the board today is a 
recommendation to approve Contract Amendment No. 6 with GBS Group. The GBS Group 
provides on- board passenger WiFi service on SMART trains, ongoing support, monitoring, 
operations and maintenance.  
 
Staff recommends the approval of this contract in the amount of $483,587, with a term 
of 1 year expiring December 31, 2020. 
 
Comments: 
Director Fudge stated the WiFi service connection has improved tremendously since 
opening day 2017. 
 
MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved to Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract 
Amendment No. 6 with GBS Group in the amount of $483,587 for performance of 
maintenance and monitoring services for Internet Connectivity for the SMART Trains as 
presented. Director Lucan second. The motion carried 9-0 (Directors Rogers and Zane 
absent; Director Naujokas arrived later). 
 
 

Page 6 of 69 



Page 5 of 14 

9. Accept SMART’s Fiscal Year 2018-19 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and 
Memorandum of Internal Controls 
 
Chief Financial Officer, Erin McGrath thanked Fiscal Manager, Katye Roa and Supervising 
Accountant, Kathy Holt for their work on the reports. Ms. McGrath gave an overview of 
the Fiscal Year 2018-19 Memorandum of Internal Control and Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Reports.  
 
The Memorandum of Internal Control is prepared by our auditors outlining their review 
of SMART’s internal control in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. 
We are pleased to report that the Auditors noted no transactions entered for which there 
is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus and did not identify any deficiencies in 
the internal control that would be considered material weakness.  
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is a best practice in government for 
presenting annual financial information. Our report contains our recently achievement 
award from the Government Financial Officer Association for our 2018 report. This report 
contains introductory information and statistical section. The highlights include: 

▪ SMART’s net at the close of Fiscal Year was $467.6 million 
▪ Unrestricted Assets were $64 million 
▪ Sales Tax revenue of $41.2 million (11% higher than the prior year which is higher 

than we anticipated during the budget) 
▪ Total Operating Expenses were $49 million 

 
 Comments: 

Vice Chair Pahre stated that people under estimate: 1) what it takes to complete the 
reports; 2) how to get a clean audit in a large organization; and 3) what it means to receive 
an award from another organization. She thanked staff for representing SMART 
transparency. 
 
Chair Phillips thanked staff for an excellent report, and added: “SMART is very fortunate 
to have an excelled Finance staff” 
 
Director Hillmer stated that it is an excellent report. He asked for clarification on page 47, 
Table 5: Revenue Base and Revenue Rate, Total Sales Tax Revenue. The report shows an 
increase from 2010 to 2019, and if it’s based-on items costing more. Ms. McGrath 
responded that in addition to item costing more, we have experience growth since 2008 
plus there has been a shift in internet retailers. Also, Table 7: Principal Revenue Payers 
illustrates Payers growth. 
 
MOTION: Director Pahre moved to Accept SMART’s Fiscal Year 2018-19 Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report and Memorandum of Internal Controls as presented. Director 
Arnold second. The motion carried 9-0 (Directors Rogers and Zane absent; Director 
Naujokas arrived later) 
 

Page 7 of 69 



Page 6 of 14 

10. Approve a Resolution and Authorize the Board Chair to Execute the Collective Bargaining 
Agreement Between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit District and the Operating 
Engineers Local 3 for the period of December 16, 2019 to December 15, 2022 

 
Human Resources Manager, Lisa Hansley, stated that the item for Board approval today 
is to authorize the three-year collective bargain agreement with the Operating Engineer 
Local Union 3 and SMART. She thanked Felix Huerta and all negotiation parties 
 
The agreement represents a total of twenty-nine (29) Engineer-Conductors and 
Conductors. The new agreement includes the following modifications: 1) wage increases  
including cost of living adjustments; 2) shift bidding once every four months, it currently 
allows once every 6 months; 3) probational period of  9 months with the option for the 
District to extend the period by an additional 3 months, the current probationary period 
is 12 months; 4) Training pay of flat rate of $35 per day, who are tasked with training 
Engineer-Conductors and Conductor Trainees. 
 

Comments 
Felix Huerta Jr. stated that he was the assigned representative to conduct the contract 
negotiations is happy to report that the membership ratified the contract. Both parties 
comprised to reach an agreement. He introduced Joe Lewis who will be representing the 
Engineers 
  
MOTION: Director Arnold moved to Approve a Resolution and Authorize the Board Chair 
to Execute the Collective Bargaining Agreement Between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail 
Transit District and the Operating Engineers Local 3 for the period of December 16, 2019 
to December 15, 2022 as presented. Director Hillmer second. The motion carried 9-0 
(Directors Rogers and Zane absent; Director Naujokas arrived later) 

 
11. Approve a Resolution designating the General Manager as the signatory for a joint 

Affordable Housing Sustainable Communities grant to the State of California Strategic 
Growth Council and Department of Housing and Community Development 
 
Grants and Programming Manager, Joanne Parker, stated that the item for Board 
approval today is a Resolution to authorize the General Manager to enter into joint 
application for Affordable Housing Sustainable Communities funds for the State of 
California. 
 
Ms. Parker said that this particular grant has a very complicated application and fund 
source process.  The nature of the grant is that it will provide funding to both housing 
projects and transportation investments that support the State’s climate and land use 
goals. 
 
The partnerships are between MidPen Housing, City of Santa Rosa, and SMART for the 
Roseland Village project in Southwest Santa Rosa. The MidPen Housing Roseland Village 
project will construct 75 multifamily affordable units. The City of Santa Rosa elements 

Page 8 of 69 



Page 7 of 14 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

   
  

 
12.  
  
  
 

 
 

 
  
  

  
  
  

   
  

 
   
   

   
 

 
  

  
 

include  bus  improvement,  pedestrian  pathway  from  Joe  Rodota  trail  toward  3rd Street 
Santa Rosa, and the crossing at 3rd street, along with pedestrian gap closures. The second 
part of the application is for funds to construct the Windsor Rail Extension, the purpose 
of the partnership is to advance funding and continue construction.

There is a second partnership application with the Santa Rosa Junior College and City of 
Santa Rosa that will be presented at your next Board meeting.

Comments:
Duane  Bellinger  asked  the  distance  of  the  project  to  SMART’s  Downtown  Santa  Rosa 
Station. Ms. Parker responded that its within a mile radius.

Director Rabbitt thanked SMART staff for working with all agencies to bring connectivity 
to the community.

MOTION: Director Rabbitt moved to Approve  a Resolution designating  the  General 
Manager as the signatory for a joint Affordable Housing Sustainable Communities grant 
to  the  State  of  California  Strategic  Growth  Council  and  Department  of  Housing  and 
Community Development as presented. Director Fudge second. The motion carried 9-0
(Directors Rogers and Zane absent; Director Naujokas arrived later)

Ridership Data Collection, Analysis and Presentation (Discussion)

Director Naujokas arrived 2:20pm

Grants and Programming Manager, Joanne  Parker provided a PowerPoint presentation 
on Ridership Data Collection and Reporting. Highlights include:

▪ SMART  Riders  as of January  7,  2019  is  1.7  million passengers  and  over  165,000
bicycles and 6,00 wheelchairs.

▪ Serving Marin and Sonoma County Residents
▪ Who are SMART’s Core Riders?

o 85% are weekday riders
o 15% are weekend/holiday riders
o 9.8% bring Bicycles on-board

▪ Annual Ridership – 3 ways of looking at it
o Fiscal Year (July 1 – June 30); which standard public transit agency practice

to use Fiscal Year for reporting
o Calendar Year (January 1 – December 31)
o SMART “Start of Service” year (August 25- August 24)

▪ Average Weekday Ridership is the standard use to determine commute impacts
▪ SMART’s Average Weekday Ridership does not include Holiday service that falls

on a weekday and cancelled days due to fires.
▪ SMART Ridership Growing

o Daily Riders not always the same people
o 11,500 separate people paid to ride SMART in a month (September 2019) 

Page 9 of 69 



Page 8 of 14 

o SMART illustrated chart of a 3-year comparison of ACTUAL ridership 
(September, October and November of 2017, 2018 and 2019) 

o In every way of looking at the data, SMART’s Average Weekday Ridership 
is growing every year 

o SMART is serving Weekday Commuters and SMART’s core mission 
o Using standard Fiscal Year numbers with projections, SMART on target to 

grow 16% over 3-year period 
▪ SMART Train and Larkspur Ferry Connection 

o New expanded SMART service schedule to Larkspur Ferry launched 
January 1, 2020 (first post-holiday commuter weekday Monday, Jan 6) 

o Initial data suggest daily Larkspur Station ridership in the first days of 
service already higher that projections. 

o January ridership analysis available by the end of February. 
▪ How SMART collects Rider Data  

o Two main types of transit systems: Closed Transit System and Open 
Platform Transit System 

▪ Open Platform vs. Closed System 
o Closed System (Electronic or Human Gatekeeper, like BART, Golden Gate 

Bus and Golden Gate Ferry) 
o Open Platform (No gates and no staff, like Caltrain and SMART); relies on 

passenger actions for accuracy (Clipper Tag on/Tag off and Mobile App 
activation) 

▪ Ridership – Data Collection Methods 
o SMART is developing three ridership data collection methods (On-board 

Manual Counts, Paid Fare Media Ridership Reports, and National Transit 
Database (NTD) Ridership Surveys). By comparison, Caltrain has three 
ridership collection methods (Annual System Census, Paid Fare Media 
Reports and NTD Ridership Survey 

▪ On Board Manual Counts  
o Engineer-Conductor Counts, daily counts that enable development of 

trend tracking over time, captures passengers who are not captured by 
paid fare 

o Free Fare service (29 free days to date) - Tubbs/Kincade fire free fare 
period, 1-year anniversary and Thanksgiving Weekend 2019 

o Promotional Free Programs – Veterans, Active Duty Military Families Ride 
Free, Kids Ride Free Weekend /Holidays Summer 2019, Post Tubbs Fire 
community and business relief passes (10,000), 1 millionth rider milestone 
and 100,000 bicycles milestone 

o Kids under 5 free 
o Riders who fail to Tag On/Off or Activate their Mobile App Ticket 

▪ Paid Fare Media Ridership Reports 
o Clipper Card and Mobile Apps equals Paid Fare Riders 
o Not consistent data since start of service 
o Dependent on rider behavior 
o Doesn’t count Free Fare Riders and Kids under 5 Free 

Page 10 of 69 



Page 9 of 14 

▪ National Transit Database (NTD) Ridership Surveys 
o Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requires ridership reporting onto the 

NTD 
o FTA requires additional method of data collection for Open Platform 

transit system 
▪ Each of the three methods of SMART’s Ridership Data Collection has its limitations 
▪ Ridership Data with the three different lenses provides a more robust picture and 

offers the ability to analyze trends over time 
▪ Ridership Analysis – Next Steps 

o All three ridership tracking methods need to be calibrated against each 
other and daily events over time 

o All three ridership tracking methods are not instantly available, unlike in 
BART’s closed system 

o On-Board Manual counts require several days 
o Paid Fare Media Ridership takes up to 2 weeks before staff can begin 

analysis 
o NTD Ridership reports are finalize every year and can take an additional 12 

months 
▪ How is Ridership Information Used 

o Fiscal Years annual totals and monthly totals reported to NTD 
o Annual Totals 
o Fiscal Year totals of ridership is transit industry standard 
o Average Weekday ridership by Fiscal Years is transit industry standard  
o Tracking trends year-over-year smooths extreme results created by 

individual events 
o Tracking trends month-over-month smooths our differences in weather 

and season shifts 
▪ Any Trends this early in our existence 

o SMART is only 2.5 years old (2 major wildfires, 2 large floods, mass 
evacuations, power shutoffs lasting many days, loss of 6000 homes, 
significant impact to the local economies of Sonoma and Marin Counties) 

o Wednesday are the highest ridership weekday 
o Weekends are lower that weekdays 
o Bicycles are carried onboard by approximately 10% of riders 
o Mobile App users travel most on Fridays and are 1/3 of fares on weekends 
o Sonoma County Tourism negatively impacted by Fires and PG&E Power 

shut offs every year 
o Free fare days result in significant drop in Paid Fare ridership 
o Illustrated charts of Monthly Weekend/Holiday Average (Manual Count) 

vs. Monthly Weekend/Holiday Average (Paid Fares) 
▪ What does the future hold? 

o New Service Schedule 
o Larkspur Station/Larkspur Ferry connection and Downtown Novato 

impacts won’t be calibrated and analyzed until March 2020 
o Windsor Station will have rider impacts in near term 

Page 11 of 69 



Page 10 of 14 

o Starting a transit service takes some time before ridership builds (BART 
carried 4% of what they carry now when they began service; Larkspur Ferry 
carried half of what they carry today when they were 2 years old) 

▪ What will future Monthly Reports to the Board include? 
o We have reported ridership at every public web streamed board meeting 
o We will continue to post the raw On-Board Manual Counts and Paid Fare 

Media Ridership on our Website  
o Illustrated sample Monthly Board Reports: 1) Cumulative from start of 

service August 2017; and 2) Fiscal Year-to-Date 
▪ Conclusion – SMART Ridership Growing 

o In every way of looking at the data, SMART’s average weekend ridership is 
growing every year 

o SMART is serving more Weekday Commuters each year and SMART core 
mission provides a green alternative to sitting in rush hour traffic 

▪ For More Information visit http://sonomamarintrain.org/RidershipReports  
 

Comments: 
Director Connolly thanked staff for the presentation. The goal really has been to ensure 
that the data is measured and presented in a meaningful way to the public and to Board 
members. Are we are seeing trends on weekday ridership, and he also suggested having 
ridership data on the time of day during the week and capacity? Ms. Parker responded 
that they will research and report back. 
 
Director Rabbitt thanked staff for the presentation. He acknowledged the difficulties and 
the challenges for providing the ridership data in a consistent way. He would like to 
understand which are the busiest stations overall, parking availability, capacity in AM/PM 
peaks. He suggested including ridership data in the monthly General Manager’s Report. 
Overall it is about the trends, as an example, he asked if anyone knows how many 
passengers are on the Caltrain northbound 6am train leaving Palo Alto? Is this important 
to SMART or the bigger picture, of the impact of the system and the ability to grow over 
time.  SMART is offering the Rail and Sail promotion on the weekends with the connection 
from Larkspur Station to Ferry, that is appreciated, with the ability to grow overtime.  
 
Director Naujokas stated that nobody is asking for road data information and it seems 
there is a double standard. He suggested measuring capacity that has been built to 
maximize the investment. Also, a demographic analysis could be helpful, having 
incentives for riders, and analysis free days.  
 
Director Fudge thanked Ms. Parker for an excellent report and presentation. She stated 
there is One Story that has been an upward trend in weekdays year after year in the 2.5 
years that SMART has been in service and a 6.5% increase from year 2 to year 3, that is 
the story. She is tired of arguing about numbers and is very concerned about how much 
time is being spent by staff organizing statistics. The public and Board members receive 
ridership data twice a month from the General Manager. People can actually take the 
counts and produce various types of averages. This report provides actual ridership 

Page 12 of 69 

http://sonomamarintrain.org/RidershipReports


Page 11 of 14 

counts, in three different ways. The facts are that the Board members have been listening 
to the public at Board meetings and on-board surveys, we continue to monitor trends and 
ways to improve ridership. SMART has changed the schedule, added trains, closed 
morning and afternoon gaps, two additional stations, coordinated with the Ferry, 
construction began for the Windsor Extension project, and passes have been introduced 
to connect the public from train to ferry. She is happy that staff has provided these 
numbers and are on SMART’s website. She stated that she would rather have the Ms. 
Parker spend her time applying for grants for Windsor to Healdsburg to Cloverdale. The 
report proves that ridership continues to increase and she is very pleased with SMART’s 
progress. The employees of SMART are very trustworthy, public servants and work very 
hard.  

 
Director Lucan thanked staff for an excellent presentation. He is glad that the ridership 
counts will be updated every 30 days. He asked if the Board will have the opportunity to 
review ridership on an annual basis, like today. Mr. Mansourian responded that during 
the Fiscal Year is the best time, since its standard for public transit agencies. He said that 
what he takes away from this report is the 80% of weekday riders continues to grow and 
this is before Larkspur Station, Downtown Novato and Schedule change. There have been 
a lot of changes that have been introduced into the system and in the next few months 
staff will be able to see the impacts as well. Lastly, when can the public and the Board 
expect to receive and update on Greenhouse emissions. Mr. Mansourian responded that 
he will research with staff and report at the next Board meeting.  
 
General Manager Mansourian asked for feedback on the future monthly reports on slide 
33 of the PowerPoint presentation  
 
Director Garbarino thanked staff and Directors Fudge and Naujokas comments. She said 
that the best carbon sink are train riders. 
 
Director Connolly would like to receive capacity and time of day usage data on a quarterly 
or monthly basis and not yearly. This information can be used to improve service, upward 
trend, and accomplish all the micro goals that have been discussed today. Mr. Mansourian 
responded that staff will provide monthly data information and during the Fiscal Year 
bigger items can be evaluated. 
 
Director Rabbitt would like to receive capacity data monthly. Mr. Mansourian responded 
that staff will research how to provide capacity data on an open platform for 38 trips and 
bring back to the Board at a later time 
 
Director Arnold thanked Ms. Parker and staff for the report. Looking at the different data 
collection what she finds particularly relevant are the different ways to collect the data. 
With the “Open system” and how relatively close the system is to SMART.  What she finds 
notable is that SMART has a responsibility to report ridership data to the National Transit 
database, since July 2017. The third set of data using the federally approved method of 
onboard counts of random selected trains over 4 quarters, make it statistically valid. Also, 

Page 13 of 69 



Page 12 of 14 

the data shows that weekdays ridership has increased by 4% in 2 years. With the addition 
of Larkspur and Downtown Novato Station ridership will increase. Lastly, she stated that 
bad news and scandals sells papers. But it is our responsibility as Board members to be 
vigilant and speak out publicly about fake news in SMART’s reporting.  Also, there is an 
economist in Novato who has an unhealthy obsession on SMART, he advocates a No on 
SMART in every election and often what he says is counted as facts instead of opinion.  
The facts are if SMART does extend the Sales Tax, not increase but extend it and without 
an early renew of the sales tax, SMART will not be able to restructure the debt service 
and will be forced to make cuts. For example, SMART will reduce the train service, 
maintenance for pathways, and the ability to compete for available grants to continue to 
construct segments and pathways.  
 
Chair Phillips stated that SMART staff has done an excellent job providing ridership data., 
Chair Phillips questioned what can we do to enhance the capacity. We have a number of 
people that work in San Rafael and Novato that can use the community benefit that is 
provided. Based on limited data information drastic decision should not be make. The fee 
rate structure has been flexible and SMART has provided various programs to provide free 
service.  
 
Comments: 
Richard Hartness stated that there are three element that need to be focused:  1) The 
Environmental Impact Report provided ridership projections per year.  He would like to 
chart that stated projections and actuals; 2) ridership data between station; and 3) 
greenhouse gas data, SMART needs the following data; how many people would take the 
bus and car to get credible estimate data. Chair Phillips stated that SMART will prepare a 
report for the next meeting. 
 
Steve Bosshard said that SMART promised 5800 riders would ride the train per day; and 
Sonoma and Marin voters believed it. He lives next to the train station and when he walks 
his dog twice a day near Golf Course Drive, he sees that train is empty, the locals call it 
“ghost train”. Staff needs to count parking spaces at each station to measure capacity. 
Also, the capacity for one train is 180, two trains is over 300 and three trains is over 400.  
His analysis based on the projection of riders; SMART gets approximate 10% of the fare 
revenue vs. cost of the system. 
 
Mike Setty addressed his concerns about rail and stated he has 40 years of experience in 
transit planning and rail advocacy. An article published today by Mike Arnold, says that 
there are only 700 riders southbound in the morning, now that statement matches the 
number of seats that SMART offers and this is success, however capacity is limited. Also, 
every new rail/transit system usually has a short fall after the second year, because fewer 
people are exploring. He suggested providing an update on ridership in February, prior to 
the March Ballot. Lastly, compare the number of persons on the train vs. the number of 
seats on the train between Novato and Petaluma.  
 
Richard Brand stated that he did a lot of research on ridership data for the 6am train out 

Page 14 of 69 



Page 13 of 14 

of Palo Alto, when Southern Pacific was running it. At the beginning there was a lot of 
riders going into the San Francisco Financial District and now the train is almost always 
empty. Also, empty trains are a red herring, because train system need to run north and 
south trains. After the dot.com bust ridership dropped, however Caltrain purchase more 
trains and locomotive and invested. After the recession ridership dropped again, however 
transit agencies need to invest for long term. SMART is a new transit system and more 
advertising and public awareness is a key factor, to counter negativity. 
 
Doug Bosco appreciated the presentation as it demonstrates how important data is but 
important it to understand the data variables? Eight years ago, he got into the newspaper 
business which experiences the same variables SMART experiences. He made it clear that 
he does not write articles for the newspaper, but he needs to sell the paper.  He is often 
getting ask how many people read the newspaper. His response is that it depends on the 
day and gathering data to sell newspapers. He said that we have to be careful about 
criticizing other business/people about data without knowing the information. 
  
Jim Oser voiced his concerned about data that is missing. The number of late trains and 
eliminated trains need to be factored into the data. If SMART has late trains, people will 
miss the ferry.  
 
Jack Swearingen said that the presentation reminded him of the global warming debate. 
Learning from the past for projections into the future is very difficult. On Saturday, he 
took the train to Larkspur to meet family and the train was standing room only. He 
suggested including more signage at the Larkspur Station to the Ferry.  
 
Carol Carswell suggested SMART’s staff to have manual clickers to count for various types 
of passengers. Also, perhaps having volunteers to assist with ridership collections. 
 
Duane Bellinger suggested having ridership data as to how many people get on/off each 
station. Once the increase of gas occurs, SMART will experience an increase in ridership. 
In Ireland he did not see any parking lots, they build stations where people live, walk and 
take a bus. If the full cost of parking is charged, we will have a much better society, since 
there will be walkable communities. Lastly, he does not mind subsidizing the ferry and 
the train system. 
 
David Gavrich stated that the most important data presented today was the increase of 
ridership during the “free” days. He suggested having more “free” rides to maximize 
community benefit and have more frequent riders. 
 
Lastly, General Manager Mansourian stated he will be providing as part of the General 
Manager’s report the following: 1) monthly report and 2) Fiscal Year to date report as 
illustrated on page 33 of the PowerPoint presentation. Staff will also research on 
providing passenger vs. capacity data that will also be incorporated.  
 
 

Page 15 of 69 



Page 14 of 14 

Chair Phillips responded that the Board members would like data that can be used. He 
suggested changing the language to better represent the terms “ridership manual and 
ridership paid”  
 
Director Naujokas would like to receive station boarding on and off data Mr. Mansourian 
responded that it’s very difficult to provide that data in the Open Platform system, staff 
he will research and will return back to Board. Ms. Parker responded that the Clipper 
system had issues providing data/reports on the first 6 months. However, we can provide 
some examples from the Clipper program. 
 
Mr. Mansourian stated that at the February Board meeting he will present the items 
discussed today to receive feedback. Chair Phillips stated that there is a difference 
between having transparency and not having data collected and available. He asked if we 
were writing the headlines for tomorrows newspaper would you say SMART Ridership is 
increasing or decreasing? Based on the report provided, he concluded that ridership is 
increasing. 
 
Director Garbarino stated that there was a 16% growth over 3-year period.  
 
Director Rabbitt stated that the Press Democrat headline as we conclude this meeting 
says “Why are fewer people taking SMART” 
 

13. Next Regular Meeting Board of Directors, February 5, 2020 – 1:30 PM – 5401 Old 
Redwood Highway, 1st Floor, Petaluma, CA  94954 
 

14. Adjournment – Meeting adjourned at 3:56PM.  
  
 Respectfully submitted, 
  

 
Leticia Rosas-Mendoza 

 Clerk of the Board      
 
 Approved on:          

Page 16 of 69 



Page 17 of 69 



Page 18 of 69 



Page 19 of 69 



Page 20 of 69 



Page 21 of 69 



Page 22 of 69 



Page 23 of 69 



Page 24 of 69 



Page 25 of 69 



Attachment(s): Ghilotti Bros, Inc Contract Amendment No. 2

Page 26 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 1 of 30 

 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACTOR SERVICES 

BETWEEN THE SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

AND GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

 

This Second Amendment dated as of February 5, 2020 (the “Second Amendment”) to the 

Agreement for Contractor Services by and between the Sonoma-Marin Area Rail Transit 

District (“SMART”) and Ghilotti Bros., Inc. (“Contractor”), dated as of May 16, 2019 

(the “Original Agreement”), and now as amended by the First Amendment and this 

Second Amendment, the “Agreement.”   

 

RECITALS 

 

 WHEREAS, SMART and Contractor previously entered into the Original 

Agreement to construct enhanced pedestrian safety improvements at several of SMART’s 

existing crossings; and 

 

WHEREAS, SMART previously amended the Agreement to award the remaining 

enhanced pedestrian safety improvements identified in the Invitation for Bid for 

Enhanced Pedestrian Safety Improvements in Solicitation No. CV-BB-19-001, as well as 

modify scope of work requirements for six of the original locations awarded, increase the 

not-to-exceed amount, and extend the term of the Agreement; and  

 

WHEREAS, SMART desires to alter the scope of work by adding two new 

locations for the Pedestrian Safety Improvements as well as remove work previously 

spelled out within the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) and the Schedule of Rates (Exhibit B); 

and 

 

WHEREAS, SMART desires to increase the not-to-exceed amount by $79,649 for 

a total not-to-exceed amount of $577,604 to account for the adjusted Scope of Work 

changes and to extend the term of the agreement through March 31, 2020. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals set forth above and the 

covenants contained herein, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties that: 

 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. ARTICLE 2.  “LIST OF EXHIBITS” 

 

EXHIBITS.  The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated 

herein: 

 

(a) EXHIBIT A-1:  SCOPE OF WORK & TIMELINE 

(b) EXHIBIT B-1:  SCHEDULE OF RATES 

(c) EXHIBIT C-1:  REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 

Page 27 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 2 of 30 

 

 

The Exhibit B to the Agreement shall be replaced with the Exhibit B-1 of this 

Second Amendment. 

 

2. ARTICLE 6.  “PAYMENT” Article 6, Section 6.02 of the Agreement is 

replaced with the following language: 

 

Contractor shall be paid, as full compensation for the satisfactory completion of the 

work described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A and Exhibit A-1) on a project basis 

in accordance with the budget established in Exhibit B-1, provided, however, that 

Contractor agrees to perform all services described in the Scope of Work for the 

negotiated amount of $577,604, regardless of whether it takes Contractor more time 

to complete or costs are more than anticipated.  The not-to-exceed (NTE) amount for 

this Agreement is $577,604 which includes labor, supervision, applicable surcharges 

such as taxes, insurance and fringe benefits as well as indirect costs, overhead and 

profit allowance, equipment, materials and supplies; in no case shall Contractor be 

reimbursed for an amount in excess of the NTE amount without a formal written 

amendment to this Agreement or formal Change Order.  The hourly rates included 

herein are for SMART’s evaluation, review and auditing purposes only.  Contractor 

shall submit its invoices in arrears on a monthly basis in a form approved by the Chief 

Financial Officer.  The invoices shall show or include: (i) the task(s) performed; (ii) 

the time in hours devoted to the task(s); and (iii) the hourly rate or rates of the persons 

performing the task(s).  Contractor shall also provide certified payroll reports at the 

time of the invoice submission. 

 

3. ARTICLE 7. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  Article 7 shall be amended as 

follows: 

 

 Section 7.01 The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect until March 31, 

2020 unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of Article 8. 

 

4. Except to the extent the Agreement is specifically amended or supplemented hereby, 

the Agreement, together with all supplements, amendments and exhibits thereto is, 

and shall continue to be, in full force and effect as originally executed, and nothing 

contained herein shall, or shall be construed to, modify, invalidate, or otherwise affect 

any provision of the Agreement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 3 of 30 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second 

Amendment as set forth below. 

 

 

SONOMA-MARIN AREA RAIL TRANSIT 

DISTRICT 

 

 

Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 

               Farhad Mansourian, General Manager  

  

   

GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

 

 

Dated: _____________ By__________________________________ 

 

 Its__________________________________        

 

 

 

                                                                APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

Dated: _______________                      By_________________________________ 

                                                                      District Counsel 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 4 of 30 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 

SCOPE OF WORK & TIMELINE 

 

Exhibit A Scope of Work & Timeline is amended as follows: 

 

I. Article 4. Scope-of-Work (SOW) is deleted in its entirety and replaced with 

the following: 

 
Ghilotti Bros., Inc. shall provide the following services upon receiving a written 

Notice to Proceed by SMART’s Project Manager: 

 

1. Site Review 

a. Contractor and SMART Engineering staff shall visit each site to lay 

out improvements prior to the start of work. 

b. Contractor shall provide suitable equipment to mark out improvements 

at each site (ex. marking paint, tape measure, etc.). 

 

2. Obtain encroachment permits 

a. Encroachment permits will be required for multiple jurisdictions 

b. Contractor shall include appropriate pedestrian and vehicle safety 

measures to accommodate work. 

 

3. Chain Link Fence Barriers 

a. Shall be 4-foot tall black vinyl-clad chain-link with black vinyl-clad 

posts and top bar, knuckle selvage up 

b. Posts may be set in concrete in posthole dug in landscape or dirt areas; 

or may be set with flanges expansion-bolted to concrete surfaces (bolts 

shall be cut/ground flush with nut) 

c. Scope of Work Reference:  

i. Attachment A - Safety Improvement Exhibits for details of 

improvements at each location 

ii. Attachment B - Plan View (Layout of Case A, B, C & D 

Barriers) 

 

4. Pipe Barriers 

a. Shall be 1-1/4 inch diameter standard galvanized steel pipe 

b. Posts shall be set in concrete in landscape or dirt areas; or may be core 

drilled and mortar set through concrete surfaces 

c. Radiused corners shall be a 6-inch radius 

d. Scope of Work Reference: Barrier/Pipe Railing 

i. Attachment B - Plan View (Page 49) 

 

Page 30 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 5 of 30 

 

5. Concrete Sidewalks 

a. Concrete for sidewalks shall be constructed per jurisdictional standards 

and shall meet all ADA standards (2% maximum cross slope, 5% 

maximum running slope) 

b. Sidewalk additions shall be dowelled into existing sidewalks 

c. Scope of Work Reference:  

i. Attachment B – Plan View (City and County Standards Pages 

51-58): 

1. County of Sonoma  

2. City of Santa Rosa  

3. City of Rohnert Park 

4. City of Cotati  

5. City of Petaluma  

6. Cities/County of Marin 

d. Scope of Work Specifications: 

i. Attachment C – Material Specifications 

1. 03 11 00 Concrete Forming 

2. 03 20 00 Concrete Reinforcing 

3. 03 35 00 Concrete Finishing 

 

6. Asphalt Concrete (AC) Additions (Rohnert Park Expressway, Rohnert Park, 

North East (NE) quadrant) 

a. Prepare and compact existing subgrade as needed to receive AC 

b. Place and compact 6-inch thick AC 

 

7. Truncated Domes 

a. Shall be cast-in-place (ADA Solutions Cast-In Place Replaceable 

Tactile Panels or Armor-Tile Replaceable Herculite series) in Federal 

Yellow.  Brand name or equal will be considered with SMART 

Engineer’s approval.  

 

8. Rolling (or Slider) Chain Link Gate (Mission Ave, San Rafael, North West 

(NW) quadrant) 

a. Fabricate or Purchase and install a 9-foot wide, 4-foot tall lockable (for 

single padlock) roller gate at end of existing right of way fencing  

b. Match black vinyl-clad chain-link fabric 

 

9. Tree Removal (East Cotati Ave, Cotati, North West (NW) quadrant) 

a. Remove and dispose of a single landscape tree, including root ball 

 

10. Retaining Wall (Southwest Blvd, Rohnert Park, South East (SE) quadrant) 

a. Construct reinforced concrete retaining wall approximately 2-feet tall 

b. Prepare and compact the subgrade 

c. Backfill and compact the retaining wall with Class 2 AB compacted to 

sidewalk subgrade to receive sidewalk addition 

Page 31 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 6 of 30 

 

d. Scope of Work Reference:  

i. Attachment B – Plan View (Page 50) 

 

11. Electrical for Pedestrian Signal Control Relocate  

a. Three existing pedestrian crosswalk signal controls require relocation: 

i. One each at 4th & 5th Streets in San Rafael, CA 

1. Relocate to nearby traffic signal pole. 

2. Remove existing pedestrian control pole 

ii. One at East Washington and Lakeville in Petaluma, CA 

1. Remove from the North Side of existing pedestrian 

signal pole and reinstall on south side. 

 

12. Crosswalk Striping 

a. Remove existing crosswalk striping per exhibits 

b. New crosswalk striping per Caltrans 2018 Standard Plan A24F Ladder 

Style 

Page 32 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 7 of 30 

 

II. Scope of Work Modifications 

 

 Scope of Work Modifications are made to the following original bid items: 

 

1. Bid Item # 31 – Lakeville Rd Petaluma  

 Location: Southeast Quadrant 

a. Install 2 ea 5 ft barriers on concrete 

b. Demo & remove existing first sidewalk flag with truncated domes, approx. 

8x10 ft 

c. Install new approx. 8x10 sidewalk flag including 3x10 ft Federal Yellow 

Truncated dome 

d. Add 10ft of 1 ft wide stop stripe 

e. Add 10ft of concrete warning grooves 

f. Move existing domes 1.5ft away from the track, they were installed too 

close and should be yellow 

 Location: Northeast Quadrant 

a. Demo existing truncated domes and concrete only sidewalk 

b. Demo existing sidewalk as needed to replace with 4ft wide truncated 

domes 

c. Remove and dispose of portion of existing guard rail and posts 

d. Relocate guard rail end and warning sign to new end of guard rail location 

e. Sidewalk addition of 4ft x 10ft with taper to back of existing sidewalk. 

The north end appears to require a thickened section 

f. Build one 3ft fence barrier, and about 18 ft of fence barrier along the edge 

of new sidewalk addition 

 

2. Bid Item # 32 – Bellevue Rd Santa Rosa  

 Location: Northwest Quadrant 

a. 3x13ft sidewalk addition: this is AC on compacted Class 2 AB with 1ft 

shoulders 

b. Install 2ea 8ft fence barriers 

 

Location: Northeast Quadrant 

a. Build 9ft fence barrier 

b. Extend existing pathway fence 3.5ft 

 

Scope of Work Modifications are made to the following original bid items: 

 

3. Bid Item # 8 – Roblar Novato 

a. Change the Northwest quadrant from a pipe barrier to a 24ft fence barrier 

b. Follow the revised layout to be consistent with ADA constraints 

4. Bid Item # 7 Civic Center Dr San Rafael 

a. Remove 25ft curb barrier 

b. Change 3x12ft concrete to 4x12ft concrete 

c. SMART will mark this out when the concrete work is complete 

Page 33 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 8 of 30 

 

5. Bid Item # 6 North San Pedro San Rafael 

 Location: Southeast Quadrant 

a. Demo & remove approximately 92 square feet of existing sidewalk, 

approximately 46 square feet of existing curb & gutter, and approximately 

46 square feet of existing asphalt roadway 

b. Re-construct 23 linear feet of new concrete sidewalk with new 5ft x 8ft 

level landings at ends of reconstructed sidewalk 

c. Construct 23 linear feet of new reinforced curb and gutter 

d. Place and compact 23ft x 2ft x 6in of hot mix asphalt roadway 

e. Construct approximately 62 linear feet of new 4ft black vinyl clad chain 

link fence barrier 

f. Place approximately 10ft x 5ft of ballast or 3in rock between new curb and 

inside of new level landings and sidewalk 

g. Install new “WATCH FOR TRAIN” 24in x 24in ground stencil 

h. Install signs on fence barrier 

a. One each Type 1 object marker sign MUTCD OM1-3 

b. One each “LOOK” sign provided by SMART 

c. One each “There is Help” sign provided by SMART 

d. Reference Exhibit C, Bid Item #6“San Pedro Road Southeast 

Quadrant” 

Location: Southwest Quadrant 

a. Demo & remove approximately 155 square feet of existing sidewalk, 

approximately 62 square feet of existing curb & gutter, and approximately 

62 square feet of existing asphalt roadway 

b. Re-construct 31 linear feet (200 square feet) of new concrete sidewalk 

including 6in tall curb on south side 

a. Portions of curb are up to 18in high on the back side due to 

existing slope and is reinforced 

b. Install 4in x 12in x 6.5in steel box underdrain (3/16in thick) in 

location of existing sidewalk underdrain 

c. Construct 31 linear feet of new reinforced curb and gutter 

d. Place and compact 31ft x 2ft x 6in of hot mix asphalt roadway 

e. Construct approximately 42 linear feet of new 4ft black vinyl clad chain 

link fence barrier 

f. Replace portion of Stop bar roadway thermoplastic white marking 

approximately 1ft x 2ft 

g. Install signs on fence barrier 

a. One each Type 1 object marker sign MUTCD OM1-3 

b. One each “LOOK” sign provided by SMART 

c. One each “There is Help” sign provided by SMART 

h. Reference Exhibit C, Bid Item #6 “North San Pedro Road Southwest 

Quadrant” 

6. Bid Item # 19 Hearn Ave Santa Rosa 

a. End of the barrier needs to be moved 18” back off the curb face on the 

north side 

Page 34 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 9 of 30 

 

7. Bid Item # 17 Rohnert Park Expressway, Rohnert Park 

a. Do not install about 4ft in the middle of fence barrier on southwest 

quadrant due to interference with SMART’s gate arm counterweight 

b. Relocate existing “Sidewalk Closed” barrier on northeast quadrant 

8. Bid Item # 16 Southwest Blvd Rohnert Park 

 Location: Northwest quadrant 

a. Relocate 2 existing fence panels (15ft) and remove corner post and 

straight-line fence between remaining posts 

b. Construct CASE B REV 1 barrier (this version is a foot deeper) which 

adds about 10sf of concrete and 2ft of fencing 

Location: Southwest quadrant 

a. Change to 4.5x12ft sidewalk extension on stem wall with fill 

b. Remove +/-20ft of existing fence 

c. Relocate existing street sign 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 35 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 10 of 30 

 

EXHIBIT B-1 

SCHEDULE OF RATES 
 

ITEM  CROSSING CITY PROJECT COST 

1 4TH ST. SAN RAFAEL $16,865.00 

2 5TH AVE SAN RAFAEL $44,100.00 

3 MISSION AVE SAN RAFAEL $21,140.00 

4 PACHECO ST SAN RAFAEL $24,440.00 

5 PALOMA AVE SAN RAFAEL $16,540.00 

6 N. SAN PEDRO RD SAN RAFAEL $78,140.00 

7 CIVIC CENTER DR SAN RAFAEL $8,518.00 

8 ROBLAR DR NOVATO $3,885.00 

9 GRANT AVE NOVATO $7,490.00 

10 CAULFIELD LANE PETALUMA $9,280.00 

11 WASHINGTON ST PETALUMA $77,500.00 

12 W. PAYRAN ST PETALUMA $13,300.00 

13 SOUTH POINT BLVD PETALUMA $1,800.00 

14 
PETALUMA HILL RD / 

MAIN ST 

COUNTY OF 

SONOMA 
$1,300.00 

15 EAST COTATI AVE COTATI $14,000.00 

16 SOUTHWEST BLVD 
ROHNERT 

PARK 
$35,813.00 

17 
ROHNERT PARK 

EXPRESSWAY 

ROHNERT 

PARK 
$16,966.00 

18 GOLF COURSE DR 
ROHNERT 

PARK 
$27,400.00 

19 HEARN AVE SANTA ROSA $12,000.00 

20 SEBASTOPOL RD SANTA ROSA $7,000.00 

21 3RD ST SANTA ROSA $11,000.00 

Page 36 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 11 of 30 

 

ITEM  CROSSING CITY PROJECT COST 

22 6TH ST SANTA ROSA $5,600.00 

23 7TH ST SANTA ROSA $6,800.00 

24 8TH ST SANTA ROSA $9,600.00 

25 9TH ST SANTA ROSA $5,100.00 

26 COLLEGE AVE SANTA ROSA $16,500.00 

27 GUERNEVILLE RD SANTA ROSA $3,500.00 

28 WEST STEELE LANE SANTA ROSA $14,500.00 

29 PINER RD SANTA ROSA $16,100.00 

30 SAN MIGUEL RD SANTA ROSA $32,500.00 

31 LAKEVILLE HWY PETALUMA $12,243.00 

32 BELLEVUE AVE SANTA ROSA $6,684.00 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $577,604.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 12 of 30 

 

EXHIBIT C-1 

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 

 

The Changes in these Exhibit C Reference Documents from this Second Amendment 

Supersede all Previous Changes 

 

Golf Course Drive, Rohnert Park Northeast Quadrant Changes 

Bid Item #18 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 13 of 30 

 

Lakeville Highway, Petaluma Southeast Quadrant Addition 

Bid Item # 31  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 14 of 30 

 

Lakeville Highway, Petaluma Northeast Quadrant Addition 

Bid Item # 31  

 

 
    Bid Item # 31 Northeast Quadrant Picture 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 15 of 30 

 

 
 

                                                            Bid Item # 31 Northeast Quadrant Picture 2 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 16 of 30 

 

 
 

                                                              Bid Item # 31 Northeast Quadrant Picture 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 42 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 17 of 30 

 

Main Street, Penngrove, Sonoma County Changes 

Bid Item # 14 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 43 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 18 of 30 

 

 

North San Pedro Road, San Rafael Northwest Quadrant Changes 

Bid Item # 6 

 

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 19 of 30 

 

 

Roblar Road, Novato Northwest Quadrant Changes 

Bid Item # 8 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 45 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 20 of 30 

 

 

Rohnert Park Expressway, Rohnert Park Northwest Quadrant Changes 

Bid Item # 17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 21 of 30 

 

 

Rohnert Park Expressway, Rohnert Park Northeast Quadrant Changes 

Bid Item # 17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 22 of 30 

 

 

Southwest Boulevard, Rohnert Park Changes 

Bid Item # 16 

 

 
 

                                                                                                    Bid Item # 16 Image 1 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 23 of 30 

 

 

 
 

                                                                                                 Bid Item # 16 Image 2 of 5  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 49 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 24 of 30 

 

 

                                                                                                 

 

 Bid Item # 16 Image 3 of 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 50 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 25 of 30 

 

 

 
 

  Bid Item # 16 Image 4 of 5 

 

 

Page 51 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 26 of 30 

 

 

 
 

 Bid Item # 16 Image 5 of 5 

 

 

Page 52 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 27 of 30 

 

  

Bellevue Ave, Santa Rosa Northwest Quadrant Addition 

Bid Item #32 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 28 of 30 

 

 

Bellevue Ave, Santa Rosa Northeast Quadrant Addition 

Bid Item #32 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 54 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 29 of 30 

 

North San Pedro Road, Southwest Quadrant 

Bid Item #6 

 

 
 

Page 55 of 69 



GHILOTTI BROS, INC. 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

CV-BB-19-001  Page 30 of 30 

 

North San Pedro Road, Southeast Quadrant  

Bid Item #6 

 

 

Page 56 of 69 



Page 57 of 69 



Page 58 of 69 



Page 59 of 69 



Page 60 of 69 



Page 61 of 69 



Page 62 of 69 



Page 63 of 69 



Page 64 of 69 



Page 65 of 69 



Page 66 of 69 



Page 67 of 69 



Page 68 of 69 



Page 69 of 69 


	01_Agenda 02.05.2020
	02_Minutes 01.08.2020
	06a_Monthly Financial Rpt
	06b_Barbier Security Staff Rpt
	06c_Ghilotti Bros Staff Rpt
	07_SRJC_CityofSR Grant Staff Rpt
	08_Low Income Program Staff Rpt
	09_Ridership Update Staff Rpt



